


MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Administrator to sign all bid related contracts. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and
Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

PUBLIC COMMENT

1) Jim Kenny spoke in opposition to the proposed Hazel Dell Sports Complex. Mr.
Kenny stated that the sports complex was going to be put on a superfund highest rated
hazard rating by the EPA/NPL and where children would be exposed to toxins of
TCE and chromium, which are below ground right now; however, there is a pipe
about 10 feet underground that could break at any time. He also commented that there
was also a separation of church and state issue in terms of when the taxpayer would
be able to use the field; he further explained. He said voters should decide on the
proposal.

CONSENT AGENDA

Discussion

Item 3: Request for ratification for submission of a grant application to Northwest
Health Foundation for funding to improve health outcomes of citizens in the Fruit Valley
neighborhood. If approved and an award is received, up to $50,000 will be available
under this grant beginning January 1, 2010.

Bill Barron, County Administrator, addressed Commissioner Mielke’s question about
fiscal impact to the county. Mr. Barron explained that $37,035 would come from the
Washington State Legislative Public Health Funds and it appeared the county would
match it in the amount of $13,705.

Commission Mielke was concerned about putting additional money out, since they’re
faced with a shortfall in the current budget.

Commissioner Boldt asked if they could hold this for a week in order to get more
information and Barron said they could.

ACTION: There being no public comment, moved by Stuart to CONTINUE consent agenda
item 3 to November 3, 2009 at 10:00 a.m., in the Commissioners’ Hearing Room, 6"
Floor, Public Service Center. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye.
Motion carried.

ACTION: There being no public comment, moved by Stuart to APPROVE consent agenda
items 1, 2, and 4 through 8. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye.
Motion carried.

Page 2 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

PUBLIC HEARING: RENAMING WEED MANAGEMENT

Item Description: To consider an ordinance amending Clark County Code 7.12.025 and
7.14 reflecting the name change from Weed Management to Vegetation Management,
duties and functions remain the same under chapter 17.10 RCW.

Department: Weed Management

Staff Contact: Phil Burgess, Director

Staff Summary:
Mr. Burgess said the name change would reflect that their capacity has expanded beyond
noxious weeds to all types of vegetation on county-owned lands.

Comments from the public:
None

ACTION: There being no public comment, moved by Stuart to APPROVE Ordinance 2009-
10-18 renaming Weed Management to Vegetation Management. Commissioners
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

PUBLIC HEARING: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS

CPZ 2009-00026 Hockinson Oaks — The property owners, Hockinson Oaks, LLC., are
requesting the covenant currently applicable to the property be amended. Currently, the
property is restricted to nine lots by the covenant executed in 2005. The applicant is
requesting the covenant be amended to allow the development of 13 total lots on the
subject property generally located at the intersection of NE 164th Circle and NE 171st
Court.

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Staff Summary:

Mr. Niten presented the staff report. He stated that the Planning Commission heard the
proposal on August 20, 2009 and made no recommendation of the request to modify the
covenant applicable to the property. He explained that during the 2005 Annual Review
cycle, the property owners petitioned the county to include the subject property in the
Hockinson Oaks Rural Center. The Planning Commission recommended changing the
property to R-5 from AG-20 zoning. During the Board of Commissioners hearing of
November 16, 2005, the board added the subject property to the Hockinson Rural Center
and applied RC-1 zoning to the property with a covenant limiting the property to 9
residences. In October 2008 the property was subdivided into 13 lots with 4 of the lots
being restricted. Niten said the applicant argues that because all 13 lots were successfully
created and have water/sewer service, there is no need to restrict development.

Page 3 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Comments from the public:

1) Earl Jackson, Attorney, 704 East Main Street, Battle Ground, representing the
applicant, Hockinson Oaks, stated that they concur with the staff report
recommending approval of lifting the lot restrictions. Mr. Jackson noted that the
covenant allows for amendments upon application from the applicant and that they
are asking for an amended covenant. Jackson said because of neighbor complaints and
issues regarding drainage, the applicant re-engineered the ditch and it has
subsequently been constructed. He provided pictures to the board and further
explained.

2) Eric Golemo, Golemo & Associates, commented on the drainage concern. He said
one issue had to do with a berm where the old fence line was off the property that
kept the water from getting to the road and the drainage ditch. County staff’s
recommendation was to extend the ditch in order to help pick up more of the runoff.
The ditch was ultimately extended 400 feet to go across the entire site and any
impervious surface. He said they received approval from county staff that the drainage
issue was resolved. He added that the ditch is upstream of the property and any new
homes constructed would not be impacted by lifting the covenant. In response to
Commissioner Boldt’s question as to whether there was a natural swell even without
the road, Golemo referenced the berm that was removed.

3) Walt Burton explained that they used to plow there to the fence so there was always a
bit of a natural rise. Also, where it is a little low is where a tile line ran.
Commissioner Stuart asked Mr. Burton about the discussion pertaining to donating
the remaining unusable land to a trust. Burton said they were going to once they are
completely done and Stuart asked Mr. Burton if he would be willing to sign
something as part of a concomitant rezone to allow for that. Burton said that was their
plan and they have already met with the school; however, he would need to meet with
his partners.

4) Sheryl Ann Ferris, 16115 NE 170" Avenue, expressed concerns about the drainage
ditch and the runoff from the asphalt of the cul de sac. Ms. Ferris stated that the ditch
did resolve the problem, but only temporary because of overgrowth. She requested
that maintenance of the ditch be included in the covenant. In terms of the cul de sac,
Ms. Ferris stated that it was incorrectly constructed. She further explained and said
they would like for the curb to be reconstructed and correctly graded. She added that
the curb needs to be permanent and an extension of the existing concrete curb.

5) Terry Ross commented about a fence on his property that was removed. He said he
had received notification that the fence was being removed in order to build the ditch.
He put the fence back up, but they backfilled the trench on 100 feet of his property
and that is causing his neighbor’s water to dam up, which subsequently dams his up.
He further explained. Mr. Ross believed a continuous ditch would alleviate the
problem.

Page 4 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Discussion:
Stuart asked Mr. Golemo how he tried to recreate the hydrological flow.

Golemo referenced a map of the street and storm plan and further explained the drainage
ditch. He said the ditch is about 1'% feet lower than the neighboring properties and it
provides an outlet for their storm runoff.

Boldt asked if it would be maintained by the homeowners’ covenant.

Stuart said notice would be provided to the homeowners that they need to maintain the
ditch. If it wasn’t maintained, Code Enforcement would do it and charge the HOA.

Golemo said he could say that it’s required to be maintained.
Boldt wanted to know if there was a reason there wasn’t a curb on the other side.

Golemo said it wasn’t necessary at the time, but it could be extended. He said the entire
curb out there was optional and done more for aesthetics and to collect runoff.

Comments from the public (continued):

5) John Fellows, co-owner of one of the properties, emphasized that there was an error
in the construction of the cul de sac and any of the water on the cul de sac was to be
directed back to the east side of the access road where there is a storm drain leading to
the treatment facility. However, water is running to the west and into the ditch and
there is a concern about road contamination going into the environment.

Chair Boldt asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

Stuart said he would supportive of removing the covenant, but would like to see the
following three provisions: 1. Ensure there is a clear maintenance provision within the
covenants that run with the home sites; 2. extend the concrete curb around to the west
side to keep rainwater on the road and flowing east; and 3. include a provision to donate
the remaining land for conservation in perpetuity upon something like the sale of the 13"
lot.

Boldt referenced the provision for extension of the curb and suggested asking county staff
if it is necessary.

Mielke said he wasn’t comfortable forcing the provision on the landowner to donate the
remaining land. As far as the drainage ditch, he wasn’t sure about the purpose of the curb.
He said the ditch seemed to be working.

Page 5 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Christine Cook, Prosecuting Attorney, stated that if the board wanted to pursue the issue
of a provision for donating the remaining land, she would suggest the hearing be
continued for a week or two in order to further discuss it with the property owner.

Stuart said he was going to suggest continuing to consent agenda in order to allow time to
get information regarding staff looking at the cul de sac.

Mr. Jackson expressed concern about a forced provision about donating the land.
Boldt asked Jackson about the first two provisions.

Jackson responded that a provision for maintenance was included in the developer’s
covenant, which has been recorded. Regarding the curb, he said he would prefer the
engineers look at it to ensure it is necessary.

[Discussion continued regarding the provision to donate the remaining land.]

Stuart said in 2005 the landowner had said that once they sited the homes they would ‘

donate the remaining land that is not usable to a trust. From today’s earlier conversation it

seemed it was still possible.
|

Jackson said he thought they would probably do it, but there were a number of things to
consider.

Boldt suggested they work on some intent language. He asked if they could hold this for a
week or so.

Stuart suggested two weeks to have the engineers look at the curbing.

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to CONTINUE CPZ2009-00026 Hockinson Oaks for the purpose
of final approval with conditions of maintenance and engineering review of the
extension of concrete curbs to November 10, 2009 at 10:00 a.m. in the
Commissioners’ Hearing Room, 6" Floor, Public Service Center. Commissioners
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

CPZ2009-00003 Precision Rebar — The property owner is seeking to change the
Comprehensive Plan and zoning designation for parcels 117935-000, 117958-000 and
117956-000 (5.29 acres) from Mixed Use with Limited Commercial zoning to General
Commercial with GC zoning, located at 1802 and 1810 NE 99'" Street, Vancouver, WA.
Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Page 6 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Staff Summary:

Mr. Niten presented the staff report. He stated that the Planning Commission heard the
case on May 21, 2009 and the proposal was continued to June 18. Following the June 18
hearing, the Planning Commission recommended approval by a 5-0 vote for the request to
change the subject parcels from mixed use with limited commercial zoning to general
commercial with GC zoning. The applicant requests to change the Comprehensive Plan
for 5.29 acres. Also, the applicant has owned a business on 2 of the 3 parcels subject to
this request since the mid-1970’s and current planning staff has raised concerns several
times regarding the applicant’s use and concluded that it was legally non-conforming.
The applicant has presented the proposal to make the property clearly conforming. Niten
stated that the Three Creeks Advisory Council heard the proposal on April 9, 2009 and
unanimously recommended approval. Niten stated that the request meets the applicable
criteria.

Comments from the public:
None

Discussion:
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

Stuart said he was fine with the change, but commented that they’re adding more
commercial to Highway 99 and they need to figure out the sub-area and what they are
going to do to help it be successful.

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00003 Precision Rebar. Commissioners
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

CPZ2009-00004 78th Street Commercial — The property owner is seeking to change the
Comprehensive Plan and zoning designation for parcels 156786-000, 156787-000,
156778-000, 156738-000, and 156870-000 (3.54 acres) from Neighborhood Commercial
with C-2 zoning to Community Commercial and C-3 zoning, located at 5015 NE 78"
Street, Vancouver, WA and adjoining parcels.

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Staff Summary:

Mr. Niten presented the staff report. He said the Planning Commission heard the request
on May 21, 2009 and recommended approval by a 3-1 vote. He said there are S parcels
with 4 separate owners and currently no commercial activity on the site. Niten stated that
the request meets the applicable criteria.

Comments from the public:
None

Page 7 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Discussion:
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00004 78" Street Commercial.
Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

CPZ2009-0000S GG One, Inc. The property owner is seeking to change the
Comprehensive Plan and zoning designation for parcels 119561-000, 119562-000, and
119560-000 (9.55 acres) from Urban Low Density Residential with R1-6 zoning to
Urban Medium with R-18 zoning. The subject site is located south of NE 109" St.
between St. Johns Road and NE 72™ Ave.

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Staff Summary:

Mr. Niten said the Planning Commission heard the proposal on May 21, 2009 and were
recommending approval by a 4-0 vote. The Three Creeks Special Planning Advisory
Council heard the proposal on April 9 and unanimously recommended approval. Niten
stated that the request meets the applicable criteria.

Comments from the public:
None

Discussion:
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

Commissioner Stuart noted that it appeared that all the work had been done by staff and
the Planning Commission to identify that the services necessary for higher density are
there, the road infrastructure, as well as the infrastructure to support it, and it does help to
fulfill the Comp Plan Zoning for the overall area. Also, there’s limited commercial in the
area.

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00005 GG One, Inc. Commissioners
Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

CPZ2009-00012 Carter — The property owner requests a change in Comprehensive Plan
designation and zone from Urban Low with R1-5 zoning to Light Industrial with ML
zoning for parcel 119885-011 (1.0 acres). Located at 10614 NE 124™ Avenue,
Vancouver, WA

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Page 8 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Staff Summary:

MTr. Niten stated that the Planning Commission heard the proposal on July 16, 2009 and
were recommending approval by a 6-0 vote. The Planning Commission found that the de-
designation that existed prior to 2004 better implemented the comprehensive plan policies
than the designation that was applied during that comprehensive planning process. They
recommended approval of the change back to Light Manufacture ML zone.

Comments from the public:
None

Discussion:
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00012 Carter. Commissioners Boldt,
Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

CPZ2009-00027 Landmark — The property owners are seeking to change the
Comprehensive Plan and zoning designation for a portion (approximately 5.86 acres) of
parcel 198634-000 from Light Industrial with ML zoning to Community Commercial
with C-3 zoning and Employment Center with BP zoning, located at the north east corner
of NE 119" Street and NE 72™ Avenue.

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Staff Summary:

Mr. Niten stated that the Planning Commission heard the proposal on September 17, 2009
and were recommending approval by a 6-0 vote. He said staff found that all of the
policies have been met. It is currently zoned ML; however, they believe the size of the
parcel would render it more useful as C3 and BP zoning.

Comments from the public:
None

Discussion:
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

Commissioner Stuart noted that from Planning Commission testimony there was
discussion about the facility that was purchased by the county and specific questions
about whether it was going to be used for a regional stormwater detention facility—the
answer came back no; it was going to be a big filter. He said his expectation was that it
would be a partnership project that would allow for a regional stormwater detention
because of the sheer size of the parcel.

Page 9 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to APPROVE CPZ2009-00027 Landmark. Commissioners Boldt,
Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion carried.

CPZ2009-00018 18" Street Extension — The cities of Camas and Vancouver have
requested that the County amend the Arterial Atlas to include an extension of NE 18th
Street from NE 192nd Avenue east to Goodwin Road as a principal arterial. Re-
classification of NE 18th Street and NE 192nd Avenue to principal arterials at the NE
corner of Section 30 has been requested by the City of Vancouver to be consistent with
their revised sub-area plan for Section 30. Re-classification of some existing segments of
Goodwin Road and NE 28th Street to principal arterials and the extension of NE 242nd
Ave from NE 28th Street to NE 14th Street as a minor arterial street has also been
requested by Camas to be consistent with the city’s capital facilities plan.

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Mike Mabrey

Staff Summary:

Mr. Mabrey presented the staff report. He said you have to balance the environmental
policies of the comprehensive plan versus the transportation policies and that staff was
recommending denial. Also, the Planning Commission voted 4-1 to deny the request.
Subsequently they received a joint letter from the cities of Vancouver and Camas
requesting that the board direct staff to perform a more detailed alignment study that
would attempt to resolve some of the conflicts between the transportation issues and the
environmental issues. In addition, they received an email from Karin and Randy Nosrati
that makes the argument that 13" Street widening to a principal arterial would not be
practical or safe. Mabrey presented maps outlining the area.

Commissioner Boldt stated that he didn’t want to spend money for a study when they
don’t have it.

Comments from the public:

1) Russell Wagner, 19910 NE 16" Street, Camas, felt that a determination of non-
significance was not proper and he thought at least an environmental consultation
would be in order for this type of process. Also, Mr. Wagner referenced an area on the
map that is a 100-year floodplain, as well as one of the largest Camas Lily fields in
Clark County, which he would hate to see destroyed. He added that staff’s response
points out that the environmental mitigation costs to construct a roadway in that
location would likely be exorbitant.

2) Ted Labbe, Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife, 2108 Grand Boulevard,
Vancouver, presented a map. Mr. Labbe explained that the area has connections to the
upland forests of Green Mountain over to Burnt Bridge Creek and down to Lacamas
Creek. He said they were pleased with the Planning Commission’s recommendation

Page 10 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

angl wanted to support and work with staff in determining a proper alignment for NE
18

3) Gretchen Starke, 308 NE 124" Avenue, Conservation Chair, Vancouver Audubon
Society, expressed support of the Department of Fish and Wildlife’s position. She
referenced a premier birder in the area who is familiar with the area and who had
concerns about the road extension through oak habitat. She also expressed
appreciation to the Planning Commission for their recommendation.

Discussion:
The Chair asked the board if they had any additional comments and/or a motion.

Commissioner Stuart said he liked the idea of having an alignment study, but did not like
the idea of their limited county staff doing it. He said this was a connection between the
City of Vancouver and the City of Camas and those areas would not be open for urban
development unless annexed by the City of Vancouver or Camas. His request was that
they send a letter to the cities suggesting the cities work together on an alignment study
and look into the feasibility of alignment, given the environmental constraints in the area.

Commissioner Boldt said he would be in favor of denying the request and letting the
Cities of Vancouver and Camas work on it.

Commissioner Mielke also agreed that the cities could work it out.

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to DENY CPZ2009-00018 18" Street Extension, and send a letter
to the City of Vancouver and the City of Camas in regards to working on the
alignment study. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion

carried.

CPZ2009-00013 Treasure — The Treasure family has requested a change in
Comprehensive Plan designation and zone from FR-2 with FR-40 zoning to Rural with
R-5 zoning for parcels 168280-000, 168279-000, 168278-000, and 168243-000 (20.0
acres). Located at 22637 NE g3 Street, Vancouver, WA.

Department: Community Planning

Staff Contact: Jeff Niten

Discussion

Commissioner Stuart stated that they have very specific legal requirements in converting

forest or farm land to anything other than forest or farm land. Without that information in
the record, he didn’t see any way of meeting the requirements for conversion and he saw

a huge liability if they were to go ahead and move forward with it.

Page 11 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

Boldt said this would come up in the Rural Land Task and their new Comp Plan. He
asked if this could be conveyed to the Rural Land Task Force to handle it. And once the
board starts their public meetings, they would also handle it.

Niten said yes, he would mention it to staff members and provide the particulars on this
specific piece.

Boldt said he would move for denial of this, but he asked that it be conveyed to the
Treasure’s that the board hears their concerns and will pass it to the next step.

Niten said he would do that.

Comments from the public:
None

ACTION: Moved by Stuart to DENY CPZ2009-00013 Treasure and forward information to the
Rural Land Task Force. Commissioners Boldt, Stuart, and Mielke voted aye. Motion

carried.

COMMISSIONER COMMUNICATIONS

There were no comments.

Hearing adjourned

Page 12 of 13



MINUTES
CLARK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
OCTOBER 27, 2009

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

¢ Boldt, Chair

G

Steve Stuart, Commissioner

Tom Mielke, Commissioner

ATTEST: Mﬁ
Clerk of the Board -
t

Please Note: The Board of Commissioners’ minutes are action minutes. Digital recordings can
be provided upon request. In addition, the Commissioners’ hearings are broadcast live on
CVTV, cable channels 21 and 23, and are also videotaped and repeated several times
(www.cvtv.org)

Page 13 of 13



